
TOWN OF WILLISTON  
Planning Commission   

Minutes of Thursday, October 5, 2023 – 7:30 P.M.  
Town Hall Beckett/Maguire Meeting Room, 7900 Williston Road, Williston VT 05495  

Zoom Meeting ID  873 0175 0819 on www.zoom.us/j/87301750819 or call 1-646-558-8656  
Zoom Recording: https://www.youtube.com/live/_j4qRU-l8iw?si=NxUUE0MbLMS0_Uex  

  
Planning Commission Present: Jill Pardini (co-chair), Ellie Beckett (Vice Chair), Dr. Steven 
Shepard, Meghan Cope, Chapin Kaynor, Shayla Livingston (co-chair, 7 pm), Hana Kessler (7 pm); 
Absent: Mickey Myat (alternate); Staff: Melinda Scott, Matt Boulanger, Emily Heymann; Public: 
Ken Belliveau, Jack Glaser, Bryan Currier, Mike Mauss, Tina Mauss, Alex Mauss, John 
Hemmelgarn, Robyn Young, Paul Brogna, Peter Shepard, Pam Allen, Shawn Handy, Alexis Handy, 
Alison Brody, Taja Hall, Mack McElroy, Deb, Terry Marron, Abby Marshall, Jim Heltz, Jude 
Hersey  
 
CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting came to order at 6:34 pm. 

PUBLIC COMMENT (items not on the agenda) There was no public comment. 

MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 (tabled to the next meeting) 

OVERVIEW BY STAFF ON PROCESS  

Emily gave an overview of the process of Specific Plan as displayed in a flow chart. Tonight the hearing is 
about Town Plan and Bylaw amendments. 

-- PUBLIC HEARING – GLASER SPECIFIC TOWN PLAN AND BYLAW AMENDMENTS – 

OVERVIEW OF THE GLASER SPECIFIC PLAN PROPOSAL   

Emily gave a brief overview of the Glaser Specific Plan. A substantial benefit must be provided in order for a 
Specific Plan to be approved. This applicant has chosen open space as the substantial benefit.  

OVERVIEW OF THE PROPOSED TOWN PLAN AND BYLAW AMENDMENTS  

Town Plan amendment to say that this specific view is a protected view, bylaw is amended to bypass Growth 
Management. Recommendation is for the PC to move forward to SB with an amendment to create building 
envelope for a future viewshed park and an amendment to add a floating easement for a path. 

Jacob Glaser gave an overview of the project from his perspective. Wants to sell his land and move, would 
like to give a portion of the land to the town. Research what the best outcome thing to do with the land, 
wanted the horse farm to continue to operate and protect the viewshed. Plan is to develop some of the land 
and to give a substantial portion to the town. A recent appraisal said the land is worth almost 2 million.  

Ken Belliveau spoke about the proposed Specific Plan. He emphasized that the viewshed is identified in Ch 
13 of the Town Plan is an important asset but in the bylaw is not proffered a strong level of protection, so this 
is a benefit to the town to have it protected. Land is worth nearly 2 million, it is unusual for the town to get 
land for free. The 38 acre parcel constrained by wetlands does not have a high $ value, but it is valuable 
because it is used by Windswept Farm, an important community asset.  

Brian Currier, project engineer, stated he can answer any questions about the project plans and layout.  

http://www.zoom.us/j/87301750819
https://www.youtube.com/live/_j4qRU-l8iw?si=NxUUE0MbLMS0_Uex


Emily provided a deeper dive into what the Planning Commission is voting on. Main change is to Chapter 11 
GM, that the project must uphold a score of 50 points to move forward. The project would have a discreet 
allocation schedule of 18 units per year, more predictable than traditional allocation schedule. Street Trees – 
street trees would not be required along Mt View Rd to preserve the view. Procedural amendment to Ch 39  to 
explicitly state what land would be protected. Appendix K would be added to the bylaw – all documentation 
of Specific Plan would be bundled into this. Town Plan amendments to explicitly state this view would be 
permanently protected. Emily stated the appraisal was received documenting the value of the land, public 
comment letters, etc.  

Meghan asked what plans the developers have for moving off of fossil fuels in this development. Brian 
Currier stated that criteria is in Growth Management, and they like other developers have chosen not to use 
that avenue to score points under GM. Meghan asked for an overview of the GM scoring.  

Emily provided that in the memo transmitted from the SP Committee. Energy Efficiency that goes above and 
beyond Stretch Code. GM scoring goes beyond that to EVT Net Zero standard. The project will have to meet 
Stretch Code under Act 250. Emily stated that the housing types will increase energy efficiency (duplexes, 
triplexes).  

PUBLIC TESTIMONY  

Shawn Handy asked what the heating source would be in the homes? Currier stated that they have not 
determined that yet. 

Terry Marron stated, speaking as a citizen not as member of the WCC, she supports the Glaser Specific Plan. 
If asked five years ago she stated she wouldn’t have supported it. She went to many of the meetings and 
learned a lot in the process, and came to the conclusion that this is probably the best outcome for this piece of 
land. If the town waits, there could be more like 200 homes, not 100 as proposed. Two very important 
benefits – the viewshed and maintaining the working landscape. Secondarily, protecting wildlife habitat and 
water quality, educational value and potential trails.  

Pam Allen spoke to the benefits of Windswept Farm. Feels this is best for the landscape and preserving 
Windswept is a huge asset to the town.  

Taja Hall spoke. She is not a Williston resident but has been part of the Windswept community for many 
years. Also agree with Terry on conservation of wetlands and how important it is. 

Shawn Handy asked how many units of affordable housing is being proposed? Currier stated 10 percent of 
homes would be affordable. Ken stated those details would be worked out at the DRB. Shawn asked if there 
would be opportunity for the public to comment and Ken stated yes there would. Shawn asked what about 
traffic has a study been done and how would it impact schools? Emily stated as the bylaw stands today there 
is no requirement for affordable units to be built in concert with market units. There is a lot going on with the 
bylaw so it may be reviewed accordingly depending on pending bylaw amendments. Shawn asked what the 
consequences would be if the affordable homes were not built. Matt provided some details on how affordable 
home requirements are ensured and monitored. Shawn asked what the definition of affordable is, and Matt 
explained it is when costs are 30% of AMI. 

Chapin Kaynor stated the give is protecting the viewshed, the take is bypassing Growth Management. He 
feels the take is greater than the give. Farming in the residential zone of town is not a priority in the town plan 
so not officially a benefit. Not a given that there would be 200 homes under the traditional process, and GM 
shouldn’t be bypassed to protect one viewshed.  

Shayla asked for a comparison of how many homes under SP to how many could be allocated through GM. 
109 units proposed and max density would allow is 218. Under traditional process, no requirement for public 
access. More certainty for Windswept and other ag uses under town ownership than under private ownership. 
No quantitative requirement for open space in RZD. Bylaw is squishy about viewshed protection in Chapter 



39. No absolute protection of viewsheds. Town Plan and bylaw do not have a one size fits all definition of 
open space. This SP proposes a variety of uses for the open space. Shayla asked how many per year under SP 
versus GM? Ken stated a lot of factors influence how many units are built per year. In this case, no more than 
18 could be built in a year. Emily stated in the conventional process the project could be done in 2035 versus 
under SP 2032. If the full 218 units are built, 2041 maybe it would be done. Not significantly different.  

Hana restated the difference as 5 or so units a year, and asked if that was correct? And if so, it probably would 
not have a great impact on the schools? Emily mentioned the CVSD demographic study and brought up the 
slide showing the graph of school enrollment plotted against population growth, showing little relationship 
between the two. Smaller homes are being built and shrinking household size and aging population.  

Chapin stated that this type of development would more likely attract families with school aged kids. Chapin 
asked how the pending bylaw amendments would affect this project? Matt stated projects vest in the current 
bylaw when an application for discretionary permit is submitted. Chapin stated that he is concerned about 
projects getting vested in current bylaws when the bylaws are undergoing substantial changes.  

Shayla asked about how this project would differ under the proposed bylaws. Matt stated the bylaw 
amendments are undergoing public hearing on October 17, largely focused on Inclusionary Zoning. Provides 
2 paths – one would be Inclusionary, the other would be GM and fee in lieu. 

Mike Mauss stated he operates Windswept Farm but wants to speak about other points. He stated we cant be 
building for future standards, must base judgments on what is possible in a given time frame. The town is 
being given a very valuable piece of land, there is an opportunity now to limit growth because of the number 
of homes proposed.  

Jacob Glaser stated he is not a land developers and wants to do what is best for the town, but if this can’t work 
out tbey would transfer to another buyer, who would be a developer whose goal would be to maximize 
profits.  

John Hemmelgarn spoke as a Williston resident. He stated he is an architect who designs schools. He has 
been paying attention to the school enrollment. It fluctuates over time and is rarely related to the growth of 
new homes. He stated the DRB reviews projects under the bylaws as they are currently. Emily stated a project 
is not vested in the bylaw until they submit a discretionary permit is submitted. Approval of this plan means 
there will be fewer homes on this land. The project is proposing 50 points under Growth Management when 
the requirement is 30 and that is a public benefit. 

Robin Young stated she values the viewshed. Others may take it for granted but will regret if its gone. Unique 
opportunity for recreational open space. Not appropriate to hold this project hostage to what may happen in 
the future. 

Terry Marron recalled a comment made at a previous hearing for Catamount Golf that the school reacts to the 
town not the other way around.  

PLANNING COMMISSION DISCUSS NEXT STEPS 

Matt stated the PC needs to decide whether it wants to close the public hearing. If so they would deliberate in 
an open session on whether to transmit to the Selectboard. 

Chapin made a comment that he is not concerned about the schools but his issue is with bypassing Growth 
Management. But he also is in favor of protecting a viewshed, both of which are noted in the town plan. 

Shawn Handy commented that S100/Act 47 allows 5 units on a parcel if served by water and sewer. Matt 
explained the nuances that 5 units per acre are allowed on areas served by water and sewer. Matt stated we 
need to treat that as if it is already in the bylaw. Other changes with the law, complexity, not yet figured out. 



Matt stated that in a Specific Plan the development needs to uphold the number of units as proposed under the 
Plan, it is binding. The applicant would need to put forth another proposal for something different under a 
different application. Nothing precludes that. Things can change up to when they start building. Ken noted 
that the intention is to build it out at a maximum of 109 units. 

CLOSE OR CONTINUE HEARING 

Steve Shepard moved to close the public hearing and Ellie Beckett seconded. Motion carried with a 7-0 vote.  

IF CLOSED: OPTION TO VOTE ON TRANSMITTAL TO SELECTBOARD 

Matt explained that the next step would be to decide whether to transmit the SP on to the Selectboard. Shayla 
recommended that the PC discuss and decide tonight and everyone agreed.  

Chapin asked if an amendment could be made with regards to vesting. HE doesn’t want to short circuit that. 
Matt stated he predicts the bylaw amendments will likely be adopted or not before this project applies for 
discretionary permit. If the Specific Plan is silent on this, the bylaw as it exists the day the application is 
stamped in. Emily clarified that the Specific Plan freezes the standards to the bylaw as it exists today and the 
future amendments won’t apply to this project. 

Meghan stated the bike lockers should not have been included in the scoring, that it makes no sense in this 
area.  

Ken stated the charge to the Planning Commission was to see if the project would score 50 points under 
Growth Management under the current bylaws.  

Emily suggested that all categories are frozen except for Energy Efficiency so that the applicant would have 
the option to use that category of criteria if they wanted to. Emily stated that staff could revise the language 
accordingly and probably run it past legal counsel. 

Ellie Beckett stated she supports the project and sees that it has changed a lot from when it was first proposed. 
Other factors besides GM slow the pace of growth. In response to concerns about traffic on Old Stage Rd the 
applicant has shifted a roadway onto Mountain View Rd. Concerns about affordable housing and in response 
now there is 10%. Concerns about Windswept and this plan will make it more likely that Windswept will 
continue to operate. Concerns about lack of housing and this project proposes housing.  

Meghan stated that she finds it compelling to think of what else could happen without this SP. She doesn’t 
like every part of this project. 

Jill supports the project for the homes it will provide the community and the views it will protect. She has 
appreciated the back and forth with the applicant. 

Hana supports the project as it will provide public open space. 

Steve stated he supports the project, no plan is perfect and given pros and cons he likes where it has landed. 

Meghan read the motion as amended. Steve Shepard seconded the motion. Motion carried with a 6-1 vote. 
Chapin Kaynor is opposed.  

-- REGULAR BUSINESS – 



WILLISTON 2050 CHECK-IN ON DOOR KNOCKING/OUTREACH 

Emily stated she wanted to update the Planning Commission on Williston 2050. Matt stated we’re entering 
the critical public engagement phase of the Town Plan. Staff have been working on planning the engagement 
events. Two big asks of the PC are around door knocking, and staff will be doing door knocking as well. 
Publicity includes flyers, emails to HOAs, ads in the newspaper and a podcast posted to the website. WE are 
also looking for help as table captains. Staff will prepare scripts for the captains. Involve citizens in 
prioritizing actions for the town to take. Outreach will be compiled into a summary document. 

Meghan asked how to prepare for or respond to feelings of “we’ve already told you we want this, and it hasn’t 
happened.” Mentioned the path between the village and Taft Corners. Important to get out in front of that and 
figure out how to explain the process. Matt stated part of it is explaining that infrastructure is hard and 
expensive but also validate peoples’ feelings about it. Stronger town plan language needed. The town plan 
needs to do more than say what the bylaw should be but also what the town should do to implement projects. 
Town Plan can engender a much more robust conversation about what the town wants to do. Meghan stated it 
could be helpful to acknowledge past events and efforts and some of what has been holding the town back and 
here are some of the ways the town could shift the dynamic. Shayla added also emphasize the implementation 
steps that have gotten done. Chapin noted that he tried to get support in the SP for a path connection between 
ABS and WCS and feels he didn’t get any support for that. Meghan stated that a path would make people 
more comfortable and symbolically link Taft Corners to the Village.  

ADJOURN  

The meeting adjourned at 9:16 pm.  

To learn more about the Planning Commission, go to www.town.williston.vt.us and click on “Public Records 
and Documents,” then “Agendas and Minutes.” Or contact the Planning & Zoning Office at 7878 Williston 
Road, Williston VT, 05495 or call (802)878-6704 or email planning@willistonvt.org  

 

 

 

http://www.town.williston.vt.su/
mailto:planning@willistonvt.org

